
a  

Selkirks - Pend Oreille Transit Authority 
 Public Notice of Regular Board Meeting Agenda 

11:00 am, Thursday, October 19, 2023 
SPOT Office, 31656 Hwy 200, Suite 102, Ponderay, ID 

Zoom Meeting ID:  867 6192 1102  
Passcode: 836497 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 
 

2. Public comment period for items not on the Agenda (including questions from the press) 
 
3. Approval of Minutes 

a. Action Item:     Approve Minutes of the September 21, 2023, Public Hearing. 
b. Action Item:     Approve Minutes of the September 21, 2023, SPOT Board meeting. 

 
4. Financial Reports  

a. Action Item:     Accept Financial Reports for September 2023 
b. Action Item:    Approve Payment of Prepaid Bills and Outstanding Bills 

 
5. Staff Reports 

a. Ridership   Donna Griffin 
 

b. Operations   Donna Griffin 
 

 
6. Committee Reports 

a. Boundary County Service Development Committee 
b. Finance Committee 

 
7. Action and Discussion Items:   

a. Action Item: Review for approval the MOU By and Between SPOT and Bonner County Emergency Management 
i. Guest: Bob Howard, Director,  Bonner County Emergency Management and Solid Waste 

b. Action item: Code of Conduct 
c. Action Item: SPOT Authority Paratransit Demand Application 
d. Action Item: Executive Session pursuant to Idaho Code 74-206 1(a) To consider hiring a public officer, 

employee, staff member or individual agent, wherein the respective qualities of individuals 
are to be evaluated in order to fill a particular vacancy or need. 

e. Action Item: Authorize advertisement for Safety and Operations Manager position 
f. Action/discussion Item: SPOT staff pay and benefits 
g. Action Item: Schweitzer Mountain Route  
h. Action Item: Financial considerations 

 
8. Comments from the Chair and Board Members 

 
9. Adjournment 

Note: Public information on agenda items is available from the SPOT office at 31656 Highway 200 Suite 102, Ponderay, 
ID or call (208) 263-3774.  Any person needing special accommodation at the above noticed meeting should contact 

SPOT three days prior to the meeting at (208) 263-3774. 



1 
 

 
 

PUBLIC HEARING MINUTES 
SPOT 

 

 
 

SELKIRK PEND OREILLE TRANSIT 
September 21, 2023 

 
 

NANCY LEWIS CALLED THE MEETING TO ORDER AT 11:00 A.M. 

PRESENT: Colleen Culwell, Clif Warren, Donna Griffin, Nancy Lewis, Ron Smith, Shannon Pittman, Zale Palmer 
Absent: Gary Kunzeman, Wally Cossairt 
 
PUBLIC HEARING FOR PROPOSED SPOT 2023‐2024 BUDGET: No public present. 

No public present. No action taken.  
 
Public Comment Period: No comments. 
 
 
Meeting adjourned 11:01 a.m.  



1 
 

 
 

MEETING MINUTES 
SPOT 

 

 
 

SELKIRK PEND OREILLE TRANSIT 
September 21, 2023 

 
 

Nancy Lewis CALLED THE MEETING TO ORDER AT 11:01 A.M. 

PRESENT: Clif Warren, Colleen Culwell, Donna Griffin, Nancy Lewis, Ron Smith, Shannon Pittman, Zale Palmer 
Absent: Gary Kunzeman, Wally Cossairt 
 
Public Comment Period: No comments. 
 
MINUTES:  Approve minutes of the August 17, 2023 regular meeting as presented. 

Motion to approve the minutes of the August 17, 2023 regular meeting. Zale Palmer/ Clif Warren.   All in 
favor.  Approved 
 
FINANCIAL REPORTS:  

Accept Financial Reports for August and approve payment of prepaid bills and outstanding bills. 
Motion to accept the financial reports for August and approve the payment of prepaid bills and 
outstanding bills. Zale Palmer/ Nancy Lewis. All in favor. Approved 
 

STAFF REPORTS:   
Ridership:  Donna Griffin reported that ridership increased in all areas during August. Boundary County ridership 
increased by almost 100 over the previous month. We might hit ridership of 150,000 for this calendar year. Ponderay 
Neighbor Day went well and had good attendance.  
 
Operations:  Donna Griffin reported they are still working on the safety recalls on the Mountain buses. One is still at 
Cummins. The fuel rails have been replaced under the recall order. Still need to make sure the driver seat heaters 
installed will help with the codes in the cold weather. Bus 319 is up to $6,000 in repairs. Estimated delivery date for 
the new buses is now February 2024. New construction and sidewalk improvements are following the specs prepared 
by City of Sandpoint. The Eureka Institute has almost completed the two remaining shelters – waiting on glass. Donna 
is requesting a 6‐month extension on the grant due to material delivery delays per Shauna’s suggestion. The draft 
contract for this winter has been given to Schweitzer for review. The Public Transportation Summit in Boise is next 
week. An employee appreciation event was held last month. The drivers really appreciated it. Donna would like to set 
up an event every other month or quarterly and combine it with some training. We have received an application 
from a new driver that has been driving in West Bonner County. Shannon’s position has not been posted yet, her 
retirement has been moved to March 2024.  
 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS:   
A. Boundary County Service Development Committee:  Donna reported she and Tom are planning to visit the 

Senior Center to promote ridership. Might be funding possibilities with the Kootenai Tribe. 
 



2 
 

 
B. Finance Committee Update: The financial reports were reviewed and approved. Zale developed a match 

allocation worksheet based on ridership as requested by City of Sandpoint. The ridership numbers are based on 
where the riders enter the buses, not where they disembark, and only includes the fixed route. The paratransit 
ridership needs to be added. 

 
ACTION & DISCUSSION ITEMS: 
A. Action Item: Anderson Bros. CPA Engagement Letter for approval and signature.  

Motion to authorize Nancy Lewis to sign the auditor engagement letter. Clif Warren/ Zale Palmer. All in favor. 
Approved. 
 

B. Action Item: iiiA Benefits Documents Updated. New agreement was received with updated language, grammer 
corrections, new trustee assignments. Donna verified there were no changes to the terms from the previous 
agreement. 
Motion to authorize Nancy Lewis to sign the new agreement. Clif Warren/ Zale Palmer. All in favor. Approved. 

 
C. Action Item: ICRMP Updated JPA for approval and signature. New Joint Powers Subscriber agreement was 

received for the renewal of the policy. Mainly rewritten to clarity and consolidate previous agreement with no 
significant changes in policy. 
Motion to authorize Nancy Lewis to sign the new agreement. Clif Warren/ Nancy Lewis. All in favor. 
Approved. 

 
D. Action Item: SPOT Authority User Conduct Code and Paratransit Demand Application. Updated user conduct 

code was consolidated down to 2 pages. To be dated, laminated and posted inside the buses. 
Motion to approve the updated code of conduct dated 9/21/23. Zale Palmer/ Clif Warren. All in favor. 
Approved. 
Paratransit Demand Application to be tabled. No action taken. 
 

E. Action Item: Budget 2023‐2024.  
Motion to adopt the 2023‐2024 budget as posted. Clif Warren/ Zale Palmer. All in favor. Approved. 

 
F. Action Item: Bonner County Cost Allocation tool. Discussed earlier in the Finance Committee Report. 

No action taken. 
 

G. Action Item: Financial considerations.  
Employee wage increases for the next fiscal year to be presented at the next meeting during Executive Session. 
Also, the shelter grant included $5,000 of funding for bike racks to be installed at the shelter. Donna will be 
asking ITD to move the fund allocation to concrete slabs since there are no plans to install bike racks at the 
shelters. 
No action taken. 
 

COMMENTS FROM THE CHAIR AND BOARD MEMBERS: No comments. 
 
Meeting adjourned 11:49 a.m.  



 5:27 PM

 10/13/23

 Accrual Basis

 Selkirks‐Pend Oreille Transit Authority

 Summarized Balance Sheet

 As of September 30, 2023

ASSETS Bonner County Boundary County Total

Current Assets

Checking/Savings 227,569.74 15,406.48 242,976.22

Accounts Receivable 1,038.00 342.00 1,380.00

Grant Funds Receivable 182,246.01 10,767.00 193,013.01

Total Other Current Assets 40,997.33 3,078.67 44,076.00

Total Current Assets 451,851.08 29,594.15 481,445.23

Total Fixed Assets 1,427,011.11 72,360.37 1,499,371.48

TOTAL ASSETS 1,878,862.19 101,954.52 1,980,816.71

LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities 19,503.10 620.93 20,124.03

Equity 1,859,359.09 101,333.59 1,960,692.68

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 1,878,862.19 101,954.52 1,980,816.71



 5:27 PM

 10/13/23

 Accrual Basis

 Selkirks‐Pend Oreille Transit Authority

 Summary Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual

 September 2023

Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget

Total Income 92,150.00 126,206.82 7,168.00 6,297.00 13,029.00 7,464.88 112,347.00 139,968.70

Expenses:

Administration 9,616.07 11,760.26 732.11 609.78 244.09 1,189.70 10,592.27 13,559.74

Operations 57,127.34 75,087.49 4,854.64 7,005.29 10,833.19 10,314.95 72,815.17 92,407.73

Preventative Maintenance 6,465.79 6,518.00 0.00 515.45 688.39 0.00 7,154.18 7,033.45

Total Expenses 73,209.20 93,365.75 5,586.75 8,130.52 11,765.67 11,504.65 90,561.62 113,000.92

Net Ordinary Income 18,940.80 32,841.07 1,581.25 -1,833.52 1,263.33 -4,039.77 21,785.38 26,967.78

Other Income/Expense 85.47 -74,060.08 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 85.47 -74,060.08

Net Income 19,026.27 -41,219.01 1,581.25 -1,833.52 1,263.33 -4,039.77 21,870.85 -47,092.30

######## ‐             

Bonner County Boundary County TotalMountain Route



 5:27 PM

 10/13/23

 Accrual Basis

 Selkirks‐Pend Oreille Transit Authority

 Summary Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual

 October 2022‐September 2023

Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget

Total Income 811,519.10 1,120,732.30 74,685.18 82,303.82 555,672.40 329,254.86 1,441,876.68 1,532,290.98

Expenses:

Administration 146,053.04 151,923.06 16,320.98 8,377.40 10,377.50 24,088.00 172,751.52 184,388.46

Operations 482,525.48 621,816.34 47,468.68 69,012.64 166,107.10 184,550.70 696,101.26 875,379.68

Preventative Maintenance 106,943.79 80,935.72 4,598.25 6,785.42 39,613.95 105,740.71 151,155.99 193,461.85

Total Expenses 735,522.31 854,675.12 68,387.91 84,175.46 216,098.55 314,379.41 1,020,008.77 1,253,229.99

Net Ordinary Income 75,996.79 266,057.18 6,297.27 -1,871.64 339,573.85 14,875.45 421,867.91 279,060.99

Other Income/Expense -20,400.69 -392,481.00 -171.33 0.00 -329,382.60 0.00 -349,954.62 -392,481.00

Net Income 55,596.10 -126,423.82 6,125.94 -1,871.64 10,191.25 14,875.45 71,913.29 -113,420.01

0.00              ‐               

Bonner County Boundary County Mountain Route Total



Type Date Num Open Balance

America's Ink and Toner Supply, Inc.
Bill 08/14/2023 30415 738.30
Bill 08/14/2023 30416 561.75

Total America's Ink and Toner Supply, Inc. 1,300.05

Bryson Sales & Service, Inc.
Bill 06/22/2023 400-0 874.99

Total Bryson Sales & Service, Inc. 874.99

Clif Warren
Bill 09/29/2023 Conference 1,583.24

Total Clif Warren 1,583.24

Donna Griffin
Bill 09/29/2023 Conference 415.60

Total Donna Griffin 415.60

Eagle Drug and Alcohol Testing LLC
Bill 09/30/2023 101111 105.00

Total Eagle Drug and Alcohol Testing LLC 105.00

Schweitzer Mountain Resort.
Bill 09/30/2023 Fall Fest 3,010.00

Total Schweitzer Mountain Resort. 3,010.00

TransLoc
Bill 10/09/2023 INV0000003039 699.96

Total TransLoc 699.96

TOTAL 7,988.84

1:31 PM Selkirks-Pend Oreille Transit Authority

10/13/23 Unpaid Bills Detail
As of October 13, 2023

Page 1



 8:53 AM
 09/28/23

 Selkirks-Pend Oreille Transit Authority

 Paid Bills Detail
 As of September 28, 2023

Type Date Num Open Balance

Coleman Oil

Bill 07/31/2023 CP-0008669 262.35

Bill 09/17/2023 CP-0026388 1,968.52

Bill 09/24/2023 CP-0031707 1,912.07

Total Coleman Oil 4,142.94

KG&T Septic, Inc.

Bill 09/18/2023 37710 130.00

Total KG&T Septic, Inc. 130.00

Mike White Ford of Sandpoint

Bill 09/25/2023 33594 2,040.65

Total Mike White Ford of Sandpoint 2,040.65

Pressure Clean Services, Inc.

Bill 09/15/2023 17112 160.00

Bill 09/22/2023 17131 160.00

Total Pressure Clean Services, Inc. 320.00

Verizon Wireless

Bill 09/13/2023 9944362761 300.13

Total Verizon Wireless 300.13

Ziply Fiber - BF

Bill 09/13/2023 38.64

Total Ziply Fiber - BF 38.64

TOTAL 6,972.36

 Page 1 of 1



 1:25 PM
 10/13/23

 Selkirks-Pend Oreille Transit Authority

 Paid Bills Detail
 As of October 13, 2023

Type Date Num Open Balance

5th Avenue Car Wash

Bill 10/09/2023 8373 101.48

Total 5th Avenue Car Wash 101.48

Bonner County Daily Bee

Bill 09/30/2023 Budget notices 123.00

Total Bonner County Daily Bee 123.00

Coleman Oil

Bill 09/30/2023 CP-0036068 1,750.43

Bill 10/01/2023 CP-0038100 151.92

Bill 10/08/2023 CP-0039047 1,895.70

Total Coleman Oil 3,798.05

First Bankcard

Bill 09/27/2023 39.99

Total First Bankcard 39.99

Mike White Ford of Sandpoint

Bill 09/25/2023 11675 77.88

Bill 10/11/2023 34060 116.17

Total Mike White Ford of Sandpoint 194.05

Mountain Ledgers

Bill 09/30/2023 7050 708.75

Total Mountain Ledgers 708.75

Napa Auto Parts

Bill 10/05/2023 159665 182.22

Total Napa Auto Parts 182.22

Pressure Clean Services, Inc.

Bill 10/02/2023 17150 200.00

Bill 10/09/2023 17165 200.00

Total Pressure Clean Services, Inc. 400.00

RWC Group

Bill 09/28/2023 XA106063221:01 234.43

Total RWC Group 234.43

Spokane Testing Solutions

Bill 09/30/2023 SPOTA1 180.00

Total Spokane Testing Solutions 180.00

Ziply Fiber

Bill 09/22/2023 267.79

Total Ziply Fiber 267.79

TOTAL 6,229.76

 Page 1 of 1











 
Selkirks - Pend Oreille Transit Authority 

31656 HWY 200, Box 8 Ponderay, ID 83852 (mailing address) 
31656 HWY 200, Suite 102 Ponderay, ID 83852 (physical address)  

208-263-3774 
 

SPOT Agenda Item Summaries 
 

Meeting Date:  October 19, 2023 

Agenda Item:  7a. 

From:   Donna Griffin  

Topic: Review for approval the MOU By and Between SPOT and Bonner County Emergency  
Management  

Background: The purpose of the MOU is to provide transportation services for the general public, 
special populations and to volunteers and support personnel who are providing 
emergency services to designated populations affected by an emergency, disaster, or 
public health emergency.  

 

Meeting Date:  October 19, 2023 

Agenda Item:  7b. 

From:   Donna Griffin 

Topic:   SPOT Authority Code of Conduct  

Background:   Review updated documents, discuss additional language and input as needed, and 
approve for implementation. Staff added item # 4 since the last meeting.  

 

Meeting Date:  October 19, 2023 

Agenda Item:  7c. 

From:   Donna Griffin 

Topic:   SPOT Authority Paratransit Demand Application 

Background: Review updated documents, discuss additional language and input as needed, and 
approve for implementation. 

 

 

 

 



Meeting Date:  October 19, 2023 

Agenda Item:  7d. 

From:   Donna Griffin  

Topic:   Executive Session 

Background:   Executive Session pursuant to Idaho Code 74-206 1(a) To consider hiring a public officer, 
employee, staff member or individual agent, wherein the respective qualities of 
individuals are to be evaluated in order to fill a particular vacancy or need. 

 

Meeting Date:  October 19, 2023 

Agenda Item:  7e. 

From:   Donna Griffin 

Topic:   Authorize advertisement for Safety and Operations Manager position 
  
Background:   Shannon will retire March 1, 2023, and we hope to hire and train a person before  she 

leaves.  

 

Meeting Date:  October 19, 2023 

Agenda Item:  7f. 

From:   Donna Griffin  

Topic:   Staff pay and benefits 

Background:   The cost of living continues to rise, and area driver employers have increased their pay.  

 

Meeting Date:  October 19, 2023 

Agenda Item:  7g. 

From:   Donna Griffin  

Topic:   Schweitzer Mountain Route 

Background:                   Rob Batchelder forwarded the Contractor Agreement to Alterra Mountain Company for 
input. Review and discuss the agreement and bus operations for the Mountain Route.     

 

Meeting Date:  October 19, 2023 

Agenda Item:  7h. 

From:   Donna Griffin 

Topic:   Financial considerations 

Background: Upcoming budget discussion and considerations. 



SPOT Ridership 

2023  Fixed Para Bonners Ferry Mountain Route Total 

23-Jan 4672 563 230 22489 27954 

23-Feb 4200 509 204 19502 24415 

23-March 4835 600 261 19601 25297 

23 April 4197 477 152 4612 9438 

23 May 4489 548 139 0 5176 

23 June 4199 565 190 0 4,954 

23 July 5986 489 129 628 7232 

23 August 6820 536 216 0 7572 

23 September 4231 547 149 2810 7737 

2023 TOTAL 43,629 4,834 1,670 69,642 119,775 
      
2022  Fixed Para Bonners Ferry Mountain Route Total 

22-Jan 3986 365 136 20650 25137 

22-Feb 3795 447 187 16777 21206 

22-Mar 4399 538 277 12794 18008 

22-Apr 3639 482 189 3470 7780 

22-May 3752 467 191  4410 

22-Jun 3827 588 185  4600 

22-Jul 4417 480 202 494 5593 

22-Aug 5132 596 217  5945 

22-Sep 3888 545 223 2419 7075 

22-Oct 4027 509 179  4715 

22-Nov 3577 498 195 1815 6085 

22-Dec 3776 478 237 21208 25699 

2022 TOTAL 48,215          5,993 2,418 79,627 136, 253 
      
2021 Fixed Para Bonners Ferry Mountain Route Total 

January 3334 270 111 9300 13015 

February 3278 311 96 7894 11579 

March 4345 414 111 6715 11585 

April 3513 331 97 1531 5472 

May 3949 299 69  4317 

June 3782 375 119  4276 

July 4420 388 169 524 5501 

August 3965 460 139  4564 

September 3392 459 123 3382 7356 

October 3471 425 190  4086 

November 3478 429 200 562 4669 

December 3873 401 256 14,413 18943 

2021 TOTAL 44,800 4,562 1,680 44,321 95,363 
      
2019 Fixed Para Bonners Ferry Mountain Route Total 
July 4189 460 249  4,898 

August 7984 389 225 1594 10,192 

September 4042 401 230 1269 5,942 

October 4310 457 239  5,006 

November 4473 395 226 393 5,487                

December 4806 383 258 13013 18,460   
2019 TOTAL     56,599 019            2,924 35,514                                        100,056 

      



Boundary County SPOT Ridership September 2023 

 

DATE MON TUE WED THURS FRI TOTAL 
9/1/2023 0 0 0 0 19 19 

9/3/2023 0 9 11 4 8 32 

9/10/2023 0 11 14 8 15 48 

9/17/2023 0 2 8 6 12 28 

9/24/2023 0 0 9 0 13 22 

      
 

September 
Total 0 22 42 18 67 149 
       
       
       

 

Bonners Ferry to Sandpoint  22+18=   40 

Local     42+67= 109 
Total                   149 

 

DATE 

             
                                        
 
 

Sunset Rest County Moyie 

 
 

Demand 
Wed-Fri 
Seniors 

Tue/Thur 
Sandp't 
Seniors 

 
Wed    
Food 
Bank 
Boxes 

9/1/2023 0 0 0 6 13 0 0 
9/3/2023 2 0 3 6 14 10 10 

9/10/2023 2 0 0 6 23 19 11 
9/17/2023 0 0 0 8 16 8 11 

     9/24/2023 0 0 0 6 14 0 10 
        

        
September 

Total 
 

4 0 3 32 80 37 42 
        

 















     

208-263-3774                       SPOTBus.org 

 

Code of Conduct 
(SPOT buses, bus stops and faciliƟes) 

 
1. Comply with all applicable laws and ordinances-- obey the law. 

2. Prohibited behavior includes: Disorderly conduct, loud or abusive language, 
drunkenness, and/or use of illegal drugs. 

3. Comply with instrucƟons/direcƟons issued by SPOT Bus staff.  

4. Passengers shall only board and get off the bus at designated stops and, 
upon boarding, will provide a desƟnaƟon to the driver.  

No idle riding: Riders must have a desƟnaƟon and get off at that 
locaƟon. 

5. Children under 6  must be accompanied by a parent or guardian.  

6. Passengers shall stand behind the standee line while the bus is in moƟon. 

7. Passengers shall not distract the driver while the bus is in moƟon. 

8. Passengers shall yield their seat for senior ciƟzens, those in wheelchairs, 
and those with limited mobility or mobility assistance devices. 

9. Passengers shall only bring small items (bags, luggage, backpacks)  items on 
the bus, that can fit in your lap or be safely stowed under your seat.  

Depending on space available and at the discreƟon of the driver, 
passengers are permiƩed to bring skis, poles, and snowboards on board 
the bus. 

10. Service animals are welcome and must always  be under the control of   
the individual. Clean up aŌer any animal on SPOT property. 

 

11. Keep our buses and faciliƟes clean - discard liƩer in designated 
receptacles. 

12. Respect SPOT property and do not interfere with transit operaƟons. 

13. Refrain from using tobacco products including e-cigareƩes on SPOT    
property, at bus stops, and within 25 feet of the bus. 

14. Passengers shall only consume non-alcoholic beverages from spill-proof, 
covered containers on SPOT vehicles and shall not eat on SPOT vehicles. 

15. Refrain from disrupƟve behavior including making loud or unreasonable 
noises. Devices which play music or make sound may only be used with 
earphones or headphones. 

16. Passengers shall always wear appropriate clothing and shoes while on 
SPOT vehicles or properƟes and maintain a level of hygiene that is not 
offensive to the driver and other passengers.  

17. The use of bike racks is on a first-come, first-served basis. Riders are 
responsible for securing their own bikes in the bike racks. Please do not 
slam the racks when lowering or raising them. Fat Ɵre bikes will not fit on 
the bike racks.  

18. Passengers shall only use SPOT properƟes and vehicles for personal use 
and shall not engage in commercial, solicitaƟon, or promoƟonal acƟviƟes. 

19.  SPOT reserves the right to refuse service. Passengers shall be courteous 
to and respecƞul of other passengers and the driver; behave in a way that 
does not cause a safety hazard or personal interference to others.  

20. SPOT is ADA compliant and provides paratransit services for qualifying 
people.   

Any person who fails to follow this Code of Conduct may be ordered to leave 
or otherwise be restricted or excluded in the use of SPOT vehicles, faciliƟes, 
or properƟes - NoƟce of Exclusion. The NoƟce of Exclusion is immediately 
effecƟve upon delivery and may take the form of verbal or wriƩen noƟce. 
Failure to immediately comply with such a removal or exclusion order may be 
grounds for prosecuƟon for criminal trespass and/or unlawful transit conduct. 

 

Adopted/effecƟve October 19, 2023, by SPOT Board 


